
   NOTICE OF A MEETING 

(In compliance with Sec. 551.041, Et. Seq., Tex. Gov’t. Code) 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Jersey Village Crime Control and 

Prevention District (CCPD) will hold a meeting on April 22, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. in the Civic Center 

Auditorium at 16327 Lakeview Drive, Jersey Village, Texas  77040. 

ITEM(S) to be discussed and acted upon by the Board at this meeting is/are listed on the attached 

agenda. 

AGENDA 

A. Open Meeting.  Call the meeting to order and the roll of appointed officers will be taken.

B. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Crime Control and

Prevention District (CCPD) Board regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this

time.  In compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the

comment is on the agenda, the City staff and CCPD Members are not allowed to discuss

the subject.  Each person is limited to five (5) minutes for comments to the CCPD Board.

C. Consider approval of the minutes of the CCPD Meeting held on July 17, 2023.  Lorri

Coody, City Secretary

D. Consider Resolution No. 2024-01, amending the 2023-2024 Crime Control and Prevention

District’s (CCPD) Budget in the amount of $262,002.19 and authorizing the funding for

the purchase of new police radios and accessory equipment from the Crime Control

Prevention District Fund.    Danny Keele, Chief of Police

E. Adjourn
 CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify in accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act, the Agenda is posted for public 

information, at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board located at City 

Hall, 16327 Lakeview, Jersey Village, TX 77040, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and 

said Notice was posted on the following date and time:  April 15, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. and remained so posted until said meeting was 

convened. 

____________________________________________ 

Lorri Coody, City Secretary 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Jersey Village will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings.  Request for accommodation must be made to the City Secretary by calling 713 466-2102 forty-eight (48) hours prior to 

the meetings.  Agendas are posted on the Internet Website at www.jerseyvillagetx.com. 

"Pursuant to Section 30.06, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411, 

Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a concealed handgun." 

"Pursuant to Section 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 

411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not enter this property with a handgun that is carried openly."  

C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

1



B. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Crime Control and 

Prevention District (CCPD) Board regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this 

time.  In compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the 

comment is on the agenda, the City staff and CCPD Members are not allowed to discuss 

the subject.  Each person is limited to five (5) minutes for comments to the CCPD Board. 
 

C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

2



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE 

CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT 

July 17, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 

The Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD) of the City of Jersey Village, Texas, convened 

on July 17, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. in the Civic Center Auditorium located at 16327 Lakeview, Jersey 

Village, Texas. 

A. Open Meeting - The meeting was called to order at 6:11 p.m. by President Bobby Warren

with the following present:

President, Bobby Warren    City Attorney, Justin Pruitt

Director, Drew Wasson    City Secretary, Lorri Coody

Director, Sheri Sheppard

Director, Michelle Mitcham

Director, James Singleton

Director, Jennifer McCrea

Director, Austin Bleess

Staff in attendance: Robert Basford, Assistant City Manager; Mark Bitz, Fire Chief; Kirk Riggs, 

Chief of Police; Isabel Kato, Finance Director; and Abram Syphrett, Director of Innovation and 

Technology. 

B. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS - Any person who desires to address the Crime Control and

Prevention District (CCPD) Board regarding an item on the agenda will be heard at this

time.  In compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless the subject matter of the

comment is on the agenda, the City staff and CCPD Members are not allowed to discuss

the subject.  Each person is limited to five (5) minutes for comments to the CCPD Board.

There were no public comments.

C. Election and appointment of officers – President, Vice President, and Secretary for the

term, which will begin July 18, 2023 and ending July 17, 2024.

Lorri Coody, City Secretary, introduced the item.  Background information is as follows:

On May 10, 2021, City Council appointed the City Council and the City Manager to serve as

the Board of Directors for the Crime Control and Prevention District.

Sec. 363.103 of the Local Government Code requires that the Board shall elect from among its

members a president and vice president.  The board shall appoint a secretary.  The secretary

need not be a director.  The person who performs the duties of auditor for the political

subdivision shall serve as treasurer for the district.  Each officer of the board serves for a term

of one year.

Accordingly, all officers of the CCPD will serve a term of one year beginning July 18, 2023

and ending July 17, 2024.

This item is to address the requirements of LGC Section 363.103.

With limited discussion on the matter Board Member Wasson moved to elect Bobby Warren

as President, Michelle Mitcham as Vice President, and the City Secretary as the Board

Secretary.  Board Member Bleess seconded the motion.  The vote follows:

DRAFTC
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

3



Page 2 of 3 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE  

CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT – July 17, 2023 

 

   
 

Ayes:  Directors Wasson, Sheppard, Mitcham, Singleton, McCrea, and Bleess 

  President Warren 
 

Nays: None 
 

The motion carried. 

D. Consider approval of the minutes of the CCPD Meetings held on July 18, 2022.   

Director  moved to Bleess approve the minutes for the meeting held on July 18, 2022.  Director  

Singleton seconded the motion.  The vote follows:  
 

Ayes: Directors Wasson, Sheppard, Mitcham, Singleton, McCrea, and Bleess 

 President Warren 
    

Nays:  None 
 

The motion carried. 

E. Conduct a public hearing on the proposed Jersey Village Crime Control and Prevention 

District’s Budget for the fiscal year 2023-2024.   

The Public Hearing was opened at 6:14 p.m., giving all interested parties the right to appear 

and be heard on the proposed fiscal year 2023-2024 Crime Control and Prevention District 

(CCPD) budget.   
 

Chief Riggs gave background information on the requested supplementals for FY 2023-24 as 

follows: 
 

 
 

President Warren then called upon anyone wishing to speak at the public hearing.   
 

With no one signing up to speak, President Warren closed the Public Hearing at 6:15 p.m. 

F. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01, adopting a budget for the ensuing fiscal year, 

beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024 in accordance with Chapter 

363 of the Texas Local Government Code and the alternative procedures adopted by the 

District; and providing for the effective date thereof.   

With limited discussion on the matter, Director Singleton moved to approve Resolution No. 

2023-01, adopting the Jersey Village Crime Control and Prevention District’s Budget for 

fiscal year 2023-2024.  Director Wasson seconded the motion.  The vote follows: 

Item Cost Funding Source Line Item

Increase in Cy Fair- radio 10,000.00$       CCPD 27-4503 / 21-4503

Oxygen software and website hosting 4,000.00$         CCPD 27-4504 / 13-4504

Vehicle Cleaning 1,000.00$         CCPD 27-4510 / 21-4510

Security Access Card Reader 21,000.00$       CCPD 27-6571 / 91-7130 Transfer from General Fund to CIP

Cameras 120,000.00$     CCPD 27-6572 / 21-6572

Technology User Fees 29,600.00$       CCPD 27-9772 Transfer to Capital Replacement 

Total 185,600.00$     

FY 23-24 SUPPLEMENTAL ITEMS

DRAFTC
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

4



Page 3 of 3 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE  

CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT – July 17, 2023 

 

   
 

Ayes: Directors Wasson, Sheppard, Mitcham, Singleton, McCrea, and Bleess 

 President Warren 
     

Nays:  None 
 

The motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CRIME CONTROL AND 

PREVENTION DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS, ADOPTING 

A BUDGET FOR THE ENSUING FISCAL YEAR, BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2023, AND 

ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 363 OF THE 

TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE ALTERNATIVE PROCEDURES 

ADOPTED BY THE DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE 

THEREOF.  
 

G. Adjourn 
 

With no other items to be addressed by the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 6:16 p.m. 

 

 

        ____________________________ 

Lorri Coody, Board Secretary 

DRAFTC
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

5



CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT  
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS - AGENDA REQUEST 

 
AGENDA DATE:  April 22, 2024                               AGENDA ITEM: D  
 
AGENDA SUBJECT:   Consider Resolution No. 2024-01, amending the 2023-2024 Crime 
Control and Prevention District’s (CCPD) Budget in the amount of $262,002.19 and authorizing 
the funding for the purchase of new police radios and accessory equipment from the Crime Control 
Prevention District Fund.   
 
Dept./Prepared By:   Danny Keele, Chief of Police                  Date Submitted:  April 22, 2024 
 
EXHIBITS:    Resolution 2024-01 
                        Exhibit A – Budget Amendment with Quotes 
     
BUDGETARY IMPACT: Required Expenditure: $ 262,002.19 
 Amount Budgeted: $0  
 Appropriation Required: $262,002.19 

  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The Jersey Village Police Department is requesting 
$262,002.19 from the CCPD budget to purchase new police radios and accessory equipment to 
include earpieces and portable radio cases. New police radios and accessory equipment is essential 
to uphold the highest standards of safety and protection for our citizens. Effective and reliable 
police radio communication is a critical lifeline that ensures the safety of our officers in the field 
and provides a crucial layer of liability protection for our city. 
 
Our current police radios were purchased in 2012 for the amount of $220,998.00. These radios 
have surpassed their operational lifespan. According to the manufacturer these radios were 
designed and expected to serve effectively for a period of five to seven years.  These devices have 
doubled the manufacturer’s recommended time frame. Due to the age of the radios, there has been 
an increase in repairs along with issues related to the radios’ efficiency and reliability. The 
warranty coverage has expired, and the department has experienced a notable increase in 
maintenance costs along with the radios being out of service for extended periods of time for 
repairs.  
 
Uninterrupted radio communication can be the difference between life and death for police officers 
and our community. The reliability of our current radios presents a risk for our officers’ safety. 
This risk increases liability concerns for the City. The proposed upgrade to new radios is a 
necessary step towards enhancing our operational capabilities and addressing the safety and 
liability concerns associated with the age of our old radios.  
 
The inquiry into purchasing new radios began during the 2023-2024 budget planning process. At 
that time, the Department began researching multiple radio manufacturers. Each radio 
manufacturer had its own set of unique benefits and concerns. A decision was made at that time to 
be diligent in our efforts to ensure all options were explored before requesting funding for an 
expenditure of this magnitude.  
 
In an attempt to be fiscally responsible, the request for the purchase comes mid-year in an attempt 
to save money. The Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) Buy Board has announced a price 
increase of approximately 9.45%, which is set to take effect in June 2024. By securing the purchase 
of new radios and accessory equipment before this deadline, the City stands to avoid this cost 
increase. This request for funding to upgrade our police radios is driven by the need to maintain 
the highest levels of public safety, officer safety, and fiscal responsibility.  
 

C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

6



 
Included with the agenda item you will find the quote from Northwest Communications, an HGAC 
Buy Board Member, for $254,744.80 representing the cost of the new radios.  This quote also 
includes the cost should the City wait until after June 2024 to purchase these same radios at a 
significant increase. 
 
Also included in the request is the cost for radio earpieces from N-ear at $5,212.19 and the cost of 
the portable radio cases at $2045.20 from Zero9 Holsters.   The addition of the accessory 
equipment brings the total cost to $262,002.19. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: Approve Resolution No. 2024-01, amending the 2023-2024 Crime Control and 
Prevention District’s (CCPD) Budget in the amount of $262,002.19 and authorizing the funding 
for the purchase of new police radios and accessory equipment from the Crime Control Prevention 
District Fund.    

C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

7



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE 
CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT, AMENDING THE BUDGET OF 
SUCH DISTRICT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2023, AND 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, IN THE AMOUNT OF $262,002.19; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF NEW POLICE RADIOS AND ACCESSORY 
EQUIPMENT FROM THE CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT FUND. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received notice from the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) Buy 
Board of a price increase of approximately 9.45% for radios purchased from the program after June 2024; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Jersey Village Police Department’s (the Department) current radios have exceeded their 
life span and are experiencing the need of constant repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department had intended to request new radios during the 2024-2025 budget period; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, given the cost increase beginning in June 2024 and in an effort to be fiscally responsible the 
Department is making a request to purchase the radios and accessory equipment during the 2023-2024 
budget and as such have received quotes from Northwest Communications, an HGAC Buy Board 
Member for the radios and from N-ear and Zero9 Holsters for the accessory equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the annual budget for the Jersey Village Crime Control and 
Prevention District for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024, the 
District had not anticipated this expenditure change; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends that such budget be amended to reflect such purchases and 
expenditures in accordance with Budgetary Transfer Amendment Request Forms attached hereto and 
made a part hereof as “Exhibit A”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors finds and determines that the budget should be amended as 
recommended by the City Manager in order to purchase new radios and accessory equipment; NOW 
THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE CRIME 
CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT THAT: 

 
The annual budget of the Jersey Village Crime Control and Prevention District for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024, is hereby amended in the amount of 
$262,002.19 by increasing the appropriations to the accounts contained therein as provided in “Exhibit 
A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof subject to approval of the City Council of the City of Jersey 
Village. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 22nd day of April 2024. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Michelle Mitcham, Vice President 
 
___________________________________ 
Lorri Coody, Secretary 

C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

8



CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS 
16501 Jersey Drive, Jersey Village, TX 77040 

BUDGET TRANSFER I AMENDMENT REQUEST FORM 

□ I request the following budget transfer between line item within the same division: 

From Line Item To Line Item Amount 

I request the following amendment to the current budget to increase the overall 
budget by the amount designated below: Only one item per form. 

From the fund balance of: 

□ 
□ 
□ 
0 

Justification 

General Fund 
Utility Fund 
Capital Improvements Fund 
Other CCPD 

To Line Item Amount 

50-27-9781 262,002.19 

This budget amendment is necessary for the puchase of new police radios and 
accesory equipment to include earpieces and portable radios cases. 

Requested by: Danny Keele, Chief of Police 

Signed: Danny Keele, Chief of Police Date04-11-2024 

Finance: City Manager: 
Sufficient Funds~ Exist □ Do Not Exist QlApproved □ Not Approved 

Signed:_~_4-ab __ ~_ah ___ _ 

Date:1 04-11 -2024 Date: April 11 , 2024 

Form Modified May 2020 

Exhibit A

C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

9



Northwest Communications Quote 04.09
C

C
PD

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 T

H
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 H
E

L
D

 O
N

 A
PR

IL
 22, 2024

10



C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

11



C
C

PD
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 T
H

E
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 T

O
 B

E
 H

E
L

D
 O

N
 A

PR
IL

 22, 2024

12


	2024-04-22_CCPD_Agenda WEB
	B - Citizens' Comments
	C - Minutes
	D - Budget Amend - Radios
	ARF CCPD Police Radios
	Resolution 2024-01 - CCPD Budget Amend Radios
	EXA - Budget Amend - 50-27-9781 w-Quotes
	EXA - Budget Amend - 50-27-9781
	Northwest Communications Quote 04.09
	N Ear Radio Earpiece Quote
	Zero9 mollie radio carrier quote








